# **Public Document Pack**

#### CLIMATE, BIODIVERSITY & PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL

#### Held on Tuesday, 23 November 2021

#### At 6.00 pm in the Gallery Room, The Corn Exchange, Witney

#### Present:

Councillor R Smith (Chair)

Councillors:	A Prosser J Aitman	M Jones
Officers:	Claire Green	Administration Support - Planning & Stronger Communities
	Simon Wright	Democratic & Legal Services Officer
Others:	No members of the public.	

#### P600 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors O Collins, L Duncan, V Gwatkin and A McMahon

#### P601 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor A Prosser declared a personal prejudicial interest in Application No. 21/03565/HHD by virtue of being the applicant.

# P602 TO ADOPT AND SIGN AS CORRECT THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE HELD ON 21 SEPTEMBER & 12 OCTOBER & 2 NOVEMBER 2021

#### **Resolved:**

The minutes of the meetings of the committee held on 21 September, 12 October & 2 November 2021 were adopted as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

# P603 MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES OF 21 SEPTEMBER, 12 OCTOBER & 2 NOVEMBER 2021

Application No. 19/03317/FUL – Land West of Hailey Road

Confirmation was given that an updated response had been submitted to West Oxfordshire District Council in respect of this application.

#### P604 **PUBLIC PARTICIPATION**

There was no public participation.

1

#### P605 PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee received and considered a schedule of planning applications received from West Oxfordshire District Council.

It was noted that in respect of Application No. 21/03565/HHD a decision would need to be deferred as the meeting was not quorate for consideration of the application. It was agreed that comments be sought from eligible committee members and a response submitted.

#### **Resolved:**

That the comments, as per the attached schedule, be forwarded to West Oxfordshire District Council.

### P606 PLANNING APPLICATION BY UBICO LTD - RECYCLING DEPOT, SUPERGAS IND EST, MINSTER LOVELL, OX29 0SZ

The Committee considered an application for development at the Ubico Recycling Depot, Supergas Industrial Estate, Minster Lovell, OX29 OSZ.

#### **Resolved:**

That no objection be submitted and the committee expressed support for the continued delivery of an efficient recycling service from the site.

#### P607 PLANNING DECISIONS

The Committee received and considered a schedule of planning decisions received from West Oxfordshire District Council.

#### **Resolved:**

That the list circulated advising of District Council planning decisions be noted.

#### P608 APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES LICENCE. W/21/00940/PRMA - ACQUA SALATA LTD 62 CORN STREET WITNEY

The committee considered an application for a new Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 at 62 Corn Street Witney.

#### **Resolved:**

That no objection be raised to the application.

# P609 ADOPTION OF WEST OXFORDSHIRE AFFORDABLE HOUSING SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (SPD)

The Committee received the adopted West Oxfordshire Housing Supplementary Planning Document.

The Chair encouraged members to consider the content of the document and advise officers of any issues.

# **Resolved:**

That, the West Oxfordshire Housing Supplementary Planning Document be noted.

#### P610 WITNEY TRAFFIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2021

The Committee considered the minutes of the Witney Traffic Advisory Committee (TAC) meeting held on 28 September 2021.

It was noted that some of the issues including the provision of 20mph zones, Community Speedwatch and Active Travel issues would be presented to a future meeting of the Committee. A number of actions had also been referred to officers at Oxfordshire County Council for consideration.

# **Resolved:**

That, the minutes of the Witney TAC meeting held on 28 September 2021 be noted.

# P611 PAVEMENT LICENCE APPLICATION W/21/01061/PAVLIC - SMARTS FISH & CHIPS, 50 MARKET SQUARE, WITNEY

The Committee considered an application for a Pavement Licence at 50 Market Square, Witney.

#### **Resolved:**

That, no objection be raised.

The meeting closed at: 7.12 pm

Chair

This page is intentionally left blank

# Minute Item P605

# Witney Town Council

# Planning Minutes - 23rd November 2021

605

605- 1	WTC/197/21	Plot Ref :-21/03377/FUL	Type :-	FULL
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	02/11/21
	Location :-	UNIT 5 NIMROD DE HAVILLAND WAY	Date Returned :-	24/11/21
	Proposal :	Internal alterations to Units 3, 4 and 5 to c with the insertion of external windows to the		
	Observations :	Witney Town Council has no objections re	garding this applicat	tion.
605- 2	WTC/198/21	Plot Ref :-21/03383/ADV	Type :-	ADVERTISIN
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	02/11/21
	Location :-	4 TUNGSTEN PARK COLLETTS WAY	Date Returned :-	24/11/21
	Proposal :	sal : Erection of internally illuminated and non illuminated freestanding signs (one internally illuminated).		tering and two
	Observations :	Witney Town Council has no objections re	garding this applicat	tion.
605- 3	WTC/199/21	Plot Ref :-21/03550/HHD	Type :-	HOUSEHOLDE
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	02/11/21
	Location :-	34 WESTCOTE CLOSE WESTCOTE CLOSE	Date Returned :-	24/11/21
	Proposal :	Single storey front extension to enlarge kit additional ensuite bedroom, and add bifold		n to provide
	Observations :	Witney Town Council do not object to this additional soakaway on the drive, but note resulting from the front extension, and ask considered to help decrease the possibility area, in accordance with policy EH7 of the	the loss of permeat that all mitigating m of surface water flo	ble drainage neasures are poding in this
		Members note the new provision for off-roa and ask that the applicant seek the relevan County Council for installation of, (or exter	nt permissions from	Oxfordshire
			_	
605- 4	WTC/200/21	Plot Ref :-21/03573/HHD		HOUSEHOLDE
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	10/11/21
	Location :-	WITNEY HOUSE, 17 WEST END WEST END	Date Returned :-	24/11/21
	Proposal :	Demolition of existing sunroom, erection or internal alterations and proposed internal or extension.	-	
	Observations :	Witney Town Council has no objections re	garding this applicat	tion.

605- 5	WTC/201/21	Plot Ref :-21/03574/LBC	Type :-	LISTED BUI
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	10/11/21
		WITNEY HOUSE, 17 WEST END WEST END	Date Returned :-	24/11/21
	Proposal :	Demolition of existing sunroom, erection or internal alterations and proposed internal or extension.		
	Observations :	In the context of the Listed Building, member sliding doors and whether this was a suita that the development is at the rear of the p design be acceptable.	ble material for an h	istoric site. Given
605- 6	WTC/202/21	Plot Ref :-21/03085/HHD	) Type :-	HOUSEHOLDE
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	15/11/21
		321 MANOR ROAD MANOR ROAD	Date Returned :-	24/11/21
	Proposal :	Erection of single storey rear and side external rear pergola.	ensions together wit	th construction of
	Observations :	While Witney Town Council does not object of permeable drainage. The land to the So flood plain and any new development must water run-off. Members ask that mitigating decrease the possibility of surface water fl with policy EH7 of the West Oxfordshire Lo	outh West of the site t not cause for an ir measures are cons ooding in this area,	e is a functioning ncrease in surface sidered to help
605- 7	WTC/203/21	Plot Ref :-21/03594/FUL	Type :-	FULL
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	15/11/21
	Location :-	33A HIGH STREET HIGH STREET	Date Returned :-	24/11/21
	Proposal :	Temporary change of use from shop to sto church.	ore room for use by	Scouts and
		Temporary change of use from shop to sto		
605- 8	Observations :	Temporary change of use from shop to sto church. Witney Town Council has no objections re	garding this applica	tion.
605- 8	Observations : WTC/204/21	Temporary change of use from shop to sto church. Witney Town Council has no objections re Plot Ref :-21/03565/HHE	garding this applica	tion. HOUSEHOLDE
605- 8	Observations : WTC/204/21 Applicant Name :-	Temporary change of use from shop to sto church. Witney Town Council has no objections re Plot Ref :-21/03565/HHE	garding this applica	tion.
605- 8	Observations : WTC/204/21 Applicant Name :- Location :-	Temporary change of use from shop to sto church. Witney Town Council has no objections re Plot Ref :-21/03565/HHD 81A NEWLAND	garding this applica D Type :- Date Received :- Date Returned :-	tion. HOUSEHOLDE 15/11/21 06/12/21
605- 8	Observations : WTC/204/21 Applicant Name :- Location :-	Temporary change of use from shop to sto church. Witney Town Council has no objections re Plot Ref :-21/03565/HHD 81A NEWLAND NEWLAND Single storey side extension. Provision of	garding this applica D Type :- Date Received :- Date Returned :-	tion. HOUSEHOLDE 15/11/21 06/12/21
	Observations : WTC/204/21 Applicant Name :- Location :- Proposal : Observations :	Temporary change of use from shop to sto church. Witney Town Council has no objections re Plot Ref :-21/03565/HHE 81A NEWLAND NEWLAND Single storey side extension. Provision of No Comment.	garding this applica D Type :- Date Received :- Date Returned :- new solar panels to	tion. HOUSEHOLDE 15/11/21 06/12/21 front elevation.
605- 8	Observations : WTC/204/21 Applicant Name :- Location :- Proposal : Observations :	Temporary change of use from shop to sto church. Witney Town Council has no objections re Plot Ref :-21/03565/HHD 81A NEWLAND NEWLAND Single storey side extension. Provision of No Comment. Plot Ref :-21/03673/HHD	garding this applica Type :- Date Received :- Date Returned :- new solar panels to Type :-	tion. HOUSEHOLDE 15/11/21 06/12/21 front elevation. HOUSEHOLDE
	Observations : WTC/204/21 Applicant Name :- Location :- Proposal : Observations : WTC/205/21 Applicant Name :-	Temporary change of use from shop to sto church. Witney Town Council has no objections re Plot Ref :-21/03565/HHD 81A NEWLAND NEWLAND Single storey side extension. Provision of No Comment. Plot Ref :-21/03673/HHD	garding this applica D Type :- Date Received :- Date Returned :- new solar panels to	tion. HOUSEHOLDE 15/11/21 06/12/21 front elevation.
	Observations : WTC/204/21 Applicant Name :- Location :- Proposal : Observations : WTC/205/21 Applicant Name :- Location :-	Temporary change of use from shop to sto church. Witney Town Council has no objections re Plot Ref :-21/03565/HHE 81A NEWLAND NEWLAND Single storey side extension. Provision of No Comment. Plot Ref :-21/03673/HHE 36 GLOUCESTER PLACE	garding this applica ) Type :- Date Received :- Date Returned :- new solar panels to ) Type :- Date Received :- Date Received :- Date Returned :-	tion. HOUSEHOLDE 15/11/21 06/12/21 front elevation. HOUSEHOLDE 15/11/21 24/11/21

605- 10	WTC/206/21	Plot Ref :-21/03405/OU	T Type :-	OUTLINE
	Applicant Name :-		Date Received :-	16/11/21
	Location :-	LAND EAST OF WITNEY ROAD DUCKLINGTON	Date Returned :-	06/12/21

- Proposal : Outline planning permission for up to 120 dwellings with associated landscaping and infrastructure with detailed vehicular access from Witney Road (with all other matters including other access arrangements reserved).
- Observations : Witney Town Council object to this application.

The application site neighbours two parcels of land in the ownership of Witney Town Council. Firstly the allotments to the North of the site and secondly, the Lake & Country Park to the East of the site.

Policy OS2 requires that 'All development should not be at risk of flooding or likely to increase the risk of flooding elsewhere.' Further, 'All development should be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants'. The proposed development site is located in our neighbouring parish, Ducklington, however, Witney Town Council cannot ignore the immediate vicinity of the site and close proximity to land owned and managed by Witney Town Council. The proposed development site has a history of flooding, and the Witney Town Council Allotments neighbouring the site has known flood issues. The site itself is not suitable for development with the history of flooding and members cannot support a proposal that puts further pressure on the surface water drainage at the allotment site. Members echo the concerns raised by Mr Jessel of the Witney Allotments Association, we are aware of issues with flooding at this much used site and agree that development of The Moors will exacerbate the surface water flooding and drainage problems for nearby land.

Further to the objection and observations made above, the same passages of Policy OS2 and the same concerns apply to harmful impact at land to the East of the site at the Lake and Country Park. Emma's Dyke is prone to flooding, so adding potential excess surface water from the site to a watercourse already struggling to meet required capacity is not a solution. During heavy rainfall events water struggling to drain away could cause flooding to the much used public footpath area around the Southern and Western sections of the Lake & Country Park.

Thames Water release sewage into the watercourse near to this site, this leads to untreated sewage in Colwell Brook, flowing onto Emma's Dyke, and the river Windrush, running adjacent to the development site. Clearly during flood events, this leads to the possibility of not only flooding, but floodwater mixed with untreated sewage. At this point in time, there is no detailed plan or information from Thames Water as to how far any improvements to Witney Sewage Treatment Plant might go, or indeed whether it will be able to cope with the increased demand from any planned new development, without extra demand being placed upon the system from large scale developments in sites not identified in the Strategic Development Plan for Witney.

This application brings development too close to the Lake & Country Park, again, failing to meet the objectives set out by Policy OS2 'All development should as far as is reasonably possible protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the settlement'. The Lake & Country Park is in a rural setting, with natural landscaping and high biodiversity, development as proposed is an encroachment and should be refused in order to protect this valuable wildlife habitat.

Much of the vehicular, cycle and pedestrian traffic will be leaving the development site and heading North to Witney, the main service centre. The

roundabout is dangerous and busy, it is not a suitable or safe place for children to navigate.

This application fails to meet many of the General Principles of Overall Strategy policy - Policy OS2, Witney Town Council respectfully ask that this proposal for development be refused.

The Meeting closed at: 7:15pm

Signed :

Chairman Date:

On behalf of :-

Witney Town Council